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VISION

To become the preferred Financial Services provider in Pakistan, assisting Individuals, Companies
and Financial Institutions find optimal Capital Markets related solutions

MISSION

To offer a wide range of products and services in a transparent manner with an emphasis on
integrity and client confidentiality

To provide customers with complete and innovative solutions by using the best minds and
technology
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Ninth (9%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Next Capital Limited [the
Company] will be held on Wednesday, October 24, 2018 at 08:45 am. at the Registered Office of the Company,
situated at 8th Floor, Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/6, Block-II1, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the Eighth (8%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on October 25, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended June 30,
2018 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon,

3. To approve the appointment of the Auditor for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The
refiring Auditor Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

Karachi. By order of the Board
Dated: October 03, 2018
-sd-
Mubhammad Najam Al
Chief Executive

NOTES

i. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 18® October, 2018 to 24® October,
2018 (both days inclusive).

ii. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his or her proxy
to attend and vote.
Procedure including the guideclines as laid down in Circular No. I- Reference No. 3(5-A)
Misc/ARQ/LES/96 dated 26th January 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
a. Members, proxies or nominees shall authenticate their identity by showing their original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport and bring their folio numbers at the time of attending the

meeting.

b. In the case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resclutionPower of Attomey and attested copy of the
CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of meeting,

c. In order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our registrar no later than 48 hours
before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons with their names, addresses,
CNICs" numbers and signatures.

d. In the case of individuals, attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

Annual Report 2018 | 04




|! NEXT CAPITAL

e. Inthe case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney and attested copy
of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy form.

f. Beneficial owners of the physical shares and whose shares are deposited with Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are requested to bring their original Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) along with participant's [.D. number and their account/sub-account number
in CDC to facilitate identification at the time of the meeting. In case of proxy, attested copies of
proxy's CNIC or passport, account/subaccount and participant’s I.D. numbers must be deposited
along with the Form of Proxy at the registered office of the Company as per paragraph No. ii
above, duly witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNICs® numbers must be
mentioned on the proxy form and aftested photocopies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial
owner. In case of proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of
Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting (unless
it has been provided earlier to the Shares Registrar).

iii. Physical transfers and deposit request under Central Depository System received at the close of the

iv.

business on October 17, 2018 by the Company’s Registrar will be treated as being in time for
entitlement to attend, participate in and vote at the meeting,

Members are requested to submit copics of their CNICs and promptly notify any change in address by writing to
the office of the registrar.

Consent for Video Link Facility

Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, Members may participate in the meeting via video-link
facility. if the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing
at geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date
of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility
in that ¢ity.

In this regard, Members who wish to participate through video-link facility should send a duly signed request as
per the following format to the Registered Address of the Company at least 10 days before the date of AGM.

I'wWe of .
being a member(s) of Next Capital Limited, holder of Ordinary share(s) as
per registered folio/CDC Account No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at .

Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address/contacts numbers to
Share Registrar on the following address:

M/s. FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi Tel: +92 21 3438 0103-5, 3438 4621-3 Fax: 3438 0106
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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208 [ 2017 2006 | 2015 | 201 |
Rupsas in Thousands

Profit and Loss Account
Operating revenue 241,117 353,702 163,555 139,025 121,083
Investment gains - net 2,318 41,240 1311 3,596 2406
Crther income 20,467 29,508 2,713 10,224 10,590
Total Tumonver 268,902 424,450 185 589 152,845 134,079
Cperating & administrative expenses 240,135 239,422 164,286 124,662 113,738
Flnanclal cost 16,497 30,142 26,583 13,265 11,586
Profit/{loss) before taxation 4,769 139,960 (5,703) 14,704 8,755
Profit/{loss) after taxstion 25,336} 102,961 {16,146) 8,883 7436
Balance Sheet
Share capital 450,000 450,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Reserves {39,655) 40,186 (37,9100 {21,764) (30,612)
Share holders equity 410,345 450, 185 162,090 178,236 169,388
Lang term labllitles - - 92,212 108,592 48
Current assets 635,536 1,053,184 562,005 334,371 174,328
Current llabilltles 286,958 653,738 404,285 152,958 103,170
Total assets 697,302 1,143,524 58591 439,826 272,607
Total liabilities 285,958 653,738 496,501 251,590 103,218
RATIOS
Parformancs
Net Profit/{loss) Margin (%) -10.5% 25.1% 5.9% BA% 6.1%
Profit/{less) before tax (%) 2.0% 39.5% -3.5% 10.6% 7%
Expensefincame (%) 99.6% 671.7% 100.4% BO.7% 93.9%
Return on equity (%) -6.2% 21.0% =100 5.05% 4.4%
Price Earning (%) =5.9% 12.1% -£.4% 6.3% B2%
Levarags
Debt to equity (%) 0.0% 0.05% 56.9% 60.9% 0.0%
Interest cover (x) 22 64 0.79 211 176
Uquidity
Current {x) 221 161 139 219 154
Eaming Par Share [EPS) {0.56) 2.78 [0.51) 0.44 0.37
Breakup Value/Net Assets per share 912 10.89 810 £91 B.4T
Market Valus Par Share 9.50 23.01 B.0D T.02 452
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

[ am pleased to present to you, the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Next Capital Limited (NCL) has performed their duties
diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the affairs of
the Company in an effective and efficient manner which results in record year for NCL and we were able
to deliver highest ever profits to our sharcholders.

The Board of Directors of NCL comprises of highly professional and experienced people. They bring
expertise from various business disciplines including an independent director. All Board members are
aware of their fiduciary responsibilities and fulfill these by playing an important role in providing
strategic direction to the management and necessary guidance for compliance with policies and standards.

The Board of Directors’ performance has been highly satisfactory and Board Members have exercised the
required strategic oversight, The efforts of the Board’s Audit Committee and the Human Resources &
Remuneration Committee are particularly noteworthy for their valuable contributions in providing
requisite leadership support.

The Board has actively participated in strategic planning process enterprise risk management system,
policy development, and financial structure, monitoring and approval. All the significant issues
throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and formalize the
corporate decision making process.

The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulation applicable on the Company and the Board has always prioritized the
Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation in term of their conduct as directors and

At the end I would like to thank our shareholders, my fellow directors and stakeholders for all their
support & again acknowledge with gratitude the sustained and ongoing dedication of the company’s
management and staff in very challenging operating conditions. We look forward to future success in the
Company’s endeavors.

Gen, Tariq Wascem Ghazi (Retd.) Scptember 24, 2018
Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors’ of Next Capital Limited (the Company) are pleased to present their report along with the sudited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018,

Economic Review & Outlook

The economic growth of the country sustained its momentum as the real GDP registered an annual growth of 5.8% (+0.4%YoY).
The growth was led by a 3.8% and 6.2% jump in agriculture and manufacturing sector. Services sector grew by 6.4% compared
o 6.5% last year. Better and subsidized availability of farm inputs, monetary easing scenario and consistent waler provisioning
transpired growth in agriculture, previously at 2.1% while growth in the manufacturing sector can be largely attributed to regular
power disbursements and consumerism pickup. Inflationary pressures weakened as average CFPI inflation declined to 3.9% froma
previous 4.2% largely owing to containment in food pricing,

The twin deficits, however, remained a primary concern throughout the year where Current Account Deficit (CAD)of5 8% of
GDP (USDI18.1 billien) was recorded (previously 4.1% of GDP). Higher machinery imporis and transporiation expenditure
mainly CPEC related, and energy supplies including oil and LNG stained the import bill. Stunted growth in exports and
remittances continued 1o exert strain. Foreign exchange reserves depleted from USD21 .4 billion at the end of FY17 o USD16.4
hillion as the year terminated with SBP"s import coverage falling from 4 months to 2.1 months. Fiscal deficit for the year under
review stood at 6.6% of GDP (5.8% last year). Slower growth in revenues and higher current expenditure {election spending)
added o the woes. To finance the twin deficits, significant cuts in development spending need to be made with heavy domestic
and foreign borrowings. Pakistan's external debt stood at USD95 billion (33.6% of GDP) in FY2018 compared to USDE3 billion
(27.4% of GDP) last ycar,

The Pakistan Rupee succumbed with a 15.9% plummet against the greenback. The Dec’ 17 devaluation also triggered a tightening
monetary stance resulting in a policy rate hike by 75 basis points o 6.5% with the Discount Rate becoming 7% as FY 18 ended.
Further, 2.5% PKR devahuation and 100 basis points hike in discount rate have occurred post June 2018,

With General Elections 2018concluded, the new government has to confront and address owtstanding debt and its Jooming
repayments with dwindling foreign exchange reserves together with fscal imbalances. A prompt policy framework is inevitable
to tackle these challenges alongside generating sustained external financial inflows for stabilization of foreign exchange reserves
and stimulation of long-term sustainable growth.

Capital Market Review:

For the first half of FY'18, the market failed to pick an upward pace owing to foreign investment outflows of US$155mn (as
opposed 1o USS97mn in the corresponding period last year), political uncertainties including impending elections and barring of
the ex-Prime Minister from holding political office, the grey clouds bovering around the banking arena (HBL DFS penalty,
pension fund case reversal ruling)the OCAC's (Oil Companies Advisory Council) and Ministry of Petroleum’s combined
decision to shut down RFO based power plants affecting most IPPs and refineries, a 22% increase in coal pricing, 37%
appreciation in Brent pricing and the consequential inventory losses staining OMCs (7.14% weight in PSX-100), and finally, the
round of depreciation in PKR that commenced from Dec "17.

Embarking upon 2018, invigorated investor enthusiaem amid anticipated PSX turnaround atributed to impending elections. Owver
January, the market yielded an impressive return of §,8% accompanying a net inflow of US$85.7mn (highest since April 2014).
Political front also witncssed some respitc post announcement of Scnate clections and measures inchuding imposition of
additional regulatory duties, export package amendments, 5% devaluation in PKR viz a viz the USD, and, a 25bps increase in
policy rate, Amid the plummet in PKR, forex reserves also declined to US815.7bn in July 2018 while the import cover for period
hovered around USS6ba'month reflecting an acute BoP deficit. Later in the year, Amnesty Scheme announcement in Aprnil "18
corrected the market to a 9.5x (with a high of 46,637) further reinforced by budgetary reforms including tax adjustment on broker
commission, abolishment of WHT (Withholding Tax) on boous shares issued by mutual funds, and tax credit upon subseription
to new listings (sulkuk, equity). With June 2018 end, Pakistan's beachmark index outperformed its peers by ~4%, where MSCI
EM index declined by 1096 againsté3% plummet in K5E All shares with net FIPT outflows of US$288%mn and the average volume
turnaver being 174.53mn (average value traded —~ PERS. 14ba).

Going forward, the PKR recovery lately is entirely an aftermath of recent obligations from international donors. US52bn loan
from China under ‘Official Bilateral inflows" (US$1ba already transferred) and renewal of credit facility of US$4-5bn till 2020
by ITFC would provide the required cushion on the external front, Further aid of USS10bn from Saudi Arebia is also on the
cards. The emerging scenario would improve Pakistan's expanding position in the plausible IMF bailout package of ~US12bn.
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Performance Overview:
The following table depicts the Company's performance in the current year:

2017-2018 2016-2017

PAK RUPEES
Accurmiated losses as at July 01 65,051,403 (37,909,634)
Cash Dividend paid during the year (45,000,000) 5
| Net (Loss)profit for the year (25,335,688) 102,961,037
{Accumulated losses)unappropriated profit June 30 (5,284,285) 65,051,403
| (Loss)/earnings Per Share- Rupees (0.56) 2.78

Next Capital Limited posted s pre-tax profit of PKR 4.7 million in FY 18 even after suffecing from all odds in the market but was
unable to coup with the doubled income tax on brokerage income resultantly the Company declared a loss of PKR 25.3 million.
Decline in trading volurnes in equity market reflected on brokerage income in FY'18 through 28.5% reduction. Institutional and
retail equity brokerage declines by 30.5% and 25.3%, respectively. Advisory and Consultancy services remained dull during the
year duc o inactive market, uncertainty and political scemario which caused major decline of 42.0% in Advisory and
Consultancy. Tax rate on equity brokerage doubled in budget 2018 which cost the Company PKR 32.6 million and cffective tax
rate to revenue worked out around 12.5% as compared to 5.4% in FY'17. Operating expenses reduced by 9.6% but administrative
expenses increased by 18.4% due to rise in selarics, rent and tax expenses, Finance cost reduced heavily by 46.6% due to lower
utilization of financing facilities on account of reduced funding requirements,

5till the Company retained its presence considerably in foreign equity brokerage during FY 18.Going forward, the Company aims
1o continue 1o conccntrale on its growth strategy. Reduction in tax rate on brokerage income would bring equity business out of
red bulpassive outlook for equity market could not be ruled out.Long term prospects for local equitics arevigorous, Moreover,
investment banking would also remain a key arca of focus for the Company, Next Capital Limited is well positioned to capiure
the pickup in business, given its strong presence in the institutional and retail segments.

Compliance Statement:

() The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, preseat its state of affairs fairly, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

(b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

(e} Appropriste sccounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financisl statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment, with which we concur;

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the Companics Ordinance, 1984, as also stated in
note no.2 of the financial statements, have been followed in preparation of financial statements;

(g} The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored by Audit Committes;

(f) The Company is financially sound and there are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
CONCETN,

(g} There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations;

(h) K:fupnﬁngmdﬁuan:ﬂdﬂuf:nﬂﬂymuﬂpmﬂmwmhmmm&ﬁﬁm

(i} There are no statutory payments on sccount of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on June 30, 2018
except for those disclosed in the financial statements;

(i} All the material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the balance
sheet date and the date of the directors’ report have been disclosed in the report;

(k) Five directors have oblained training under the Director's Training Program;

(I} The Directors, CFO, CEQ, Company Secrctary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children did not carry
out any transaction in the shares of the Company during the year; and

{m) Pattern of sharcholding is disclosed after financial statements.

Meetings of the Board of Directors:
Five Board mectings were held during the financial year 2017-2018 and were attended by the Directors as follows:

Gen, Tarigq Waseem Ghass (Retd.) Director’ Chairman 5
Mr. Muhammad Najam Al Director/ Chief Executive Officer 5
hirs. Hanna Khan = Director! 3
Mr, Muhammad Zulgamain Mahmood Khan Director 5
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi Director 5
Mr, Hassan Shahnawasz Director 5
Mr, Umer Habib Director 4

The Board in its meeting held on February 27, 2018 appointed Mr. Nadeem ul-Haq Usmani as Chief Financial Officer in place of
Mir. Om Perkash who resigned from the position of CFC. Further, Mr. Parkash promoted to Head of Internal Audit in place of
Mir. Mohsin Ali in the Board meeting held on April 23, 2018,
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Composition of Board
1. The total number of director are seven as per the following:
a, WMale: Six
b. Female: Ome
2, The composition of bosrd is as follows:
Categories MNames
Lt, Gen, Tarig Waseem Ghard (Retd.)
Independent THrectors Ivir. Hasan Shahnawar
Mr. Muhammad Zulgamain Mahmood Khan
Other Non-executive Directors Mri. Hanne Khan
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi
Mr. Muhemroad Najem Al
Execcutive Directors Mr. Umner Habib
Committecs of Board
The board has formed committecs comprising of members given below:
&) Audit Commiitee
Mr. Hosan Shahnawae Chairmen, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mr. Muhxowmad Zubair Bllahi Member
b) Human Resource & Remunceration Committee
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
M, M. Zulgarosin Mahmood Khen Member
Mrs, Hanna Khan Member
Mr, Umer Habib Member

Dircctor's Remuneration

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in sccordance with the
Companics Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corpomts Governance) Regulations 2017,

Credit Rating

The Company hes boen re-assigned cotity ratings of *A-A-2" (A Miouww/A-Two) by JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Lid. (JCR-
WIS). The ocutlook on the assigned ratings is “Stable”. Issuer rating scale defined by JCR-VIS as good credit quality; protection
factors are adequate, Risk factors may vary with possible changes in the economy.

Management Fating

The Company has boon assigoned management mting of "BMRE2++" (BME Two Plus Plus) by JCR-VIS Crodit Rating Conmpeny
Ll {(JCR-VIS). The outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. Issuer rating rationals defined by JCR-VIS as strong regulatory
complinnes levels; sound external comrols, HR & IT services, risk management and fnancial managernem along with adequate
initial control framework cliont relationship.

Corporate and Soclal Responsibility

Company being a responaeible corporate citizen always consclouns to discharge its obligations towards the people whoe work for it,
poople around its warkplace and the society as a whole.

External Anditors

The retiring auditors, Messrs, KPMG TascerHadidk Co., Chartered Accouniants, being cligible, have offered themaclvea for
resppointment. Accordingly, the Board of Dirvectors endorses the recommendation of the Andit Committes for the appointment of
Messrs. KPMG Taseor Hadifs Co., Chartered Accountants as the suditors for the Company for the financinl year ending June 30,
2019.

Appreclation and Acknowledgement

The memagement of Next Capital Linmited extends their decpest sppreciation to all the steke holders of the Cormpeny, including its
distinguished clicnts, hardworking employees, bankemns, consultents snd other business partoners, We slso thenk the Scouritics end
Exchange Commission of Pekistan (SECP), the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), Pukistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) mnd
Financinl Market Association (FMA) for their cooperation and kind sapport.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directons
Daie; Scplomber 24, 2018

Muhamenad Majam Ali
Chief Executive Officer

Zplms
“Zubair Bllahi
Dircctar
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REVIEW REPORT ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

To the members of Next Capital Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 ("the Regulations™) prepared by
the Board of Directors of Next Capital Limited {(“the Company”) for the year ended 30
June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company’'s compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the
Company’'s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedureas and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
revieww and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with
the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 20717. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this reguirement to the extent of the approval of the
ralated party transactions by the Beoard of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committes. Wa have not carried out procedures to assess and daetarmine the
Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’'s
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 Juna 2018.

Kims “ e — [
Date: 24 September 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Name of company: NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
Year ending: 30" June 2018

Next Capital Limited (the Company) has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Sl

b. Female: One

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Categories Names

Lt. Gen. Tarig Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)

indepandent Diractors Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
Other Non-executive Directors Mrs. Hanna Khan
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi

Mr. Muhammad Najam All

Executive Directors Mr. Umner Habib

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies,
including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vislon/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recarding and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

&. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of seven (7) eminent directors, out of which five (5) directors are
already certified under the Directors Training Program as follows:

1. Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
2. Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi

3. Mrs. Hanna Khan

4. Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

5. Mr. Umer Habib
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10. The Board has approved appointment of CFQ, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complled with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

11. CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi Member

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Directer
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mrs. Hanna Khan Member
Mr. Umer Habib Member

13, The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings {quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b} HR and Remuneration Committes: Yearly

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the
firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the |CAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed |FAC guidelines in this regard.

18. The Company has continued to present the details of all related party transactions before the Audit Committee
and upeon their recommendation to the Board for review and approval. The definition of related party used Is in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and applicable financial reporting frame work as the
regulations under Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 have not yet been announced.

19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Uy * |
16
-

ey

Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)
Chairman
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AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Next Capital Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

S.
No.

Key audit matter

Valuation of Trade Debts

Refer notes 3.6 and 11 to the
financial statements.

As at 30 June 2018, the Company's
gross trade debtors were Rs.
136.049 million against which
allowance for doubtful debts Rs.
2.095 million has been recorded.

We identified the recoverability of
trade debts as a key audit matter
because estimating the recoverable
amount involves inherent
uncertainty and significant
management judgment.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures included:

obtaining an understanding of and
testing the design and
implementation of management's
key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and
allowance for doubtful debts;

on a sample basis, we tested the
itemns in the trade debtors’ ageing
report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing individual items in the
report with underlying
documentation, and assessing the
assumptions and estimates made
by the management for the
provision for doubtful debts;

comparing, on a sample basis, cash
receipts from customers
subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade debtor
balances as at 30 June 2018 with
the underlying documentation; and

we recalculated the provision and
compared the results with those
estimated by the Company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free fromn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

s (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditer's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determineg that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinions:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the staterment of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statermnent of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account;

¢l investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980), was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is
Muhammad Taufig.

Kims % onesd — [
Date: 24 September 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017
ASBETS (Rupees)
Non-current asseta
Property and equipment 4 14,376,109 16,385,032
Intangible assets 5 4,288,748 7,358,911
Investmant in shares of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited & 81,868,322 41,183,842
Long term deposits 7 10,081,200 24,670,029
Deferred tax asset - net &8 1,401,644 1,184,479
81,766,021 90,740,293
Current assets
Short term Investment classified as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss' g 12,084,500 15,408,000
Investmant In marginal financing systam 10 65,217,082 4,274 411
Trade debts 77 133,953, 876 428 808,018
Deposits and prepaymants iz 238,366,829 281,878,932
Advances and other receivablos 13 4,416,225 2,352 368
Incoma tax refundable 54,513,767 50,792,804
Cash and bank balances 14 128,983 853 269,670,057
835,538,132 1,053,183,680
Total assets — L0163 . 1.143.923.973
EQUITY AND LLABILITIES
Share capltal and reserve
Autherised capital
100,000,000 (30 June 2017: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each _1.000,000,000 ___ 500,000,000
lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital 15 450,000,000 450,000,000
Discount on issue of shares (50,000,000) {50,000,000)
{Accumulated losses) / unappropriated profit (5.284,285) 65,051,403
Unreallsed gain on remeasurement of avallable for sale
Investments 15,628,762 25,134,303
410,344,507 480,185,708
Current llabliltles _
Short term loans from related parties - unsecured 28.7 41,268,011 47,185,739
Short term loan - unsecured 17 18,853,742 80,074,088
Unclaimed dividend 3,051,838 -
Currant portion of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - 48,090
Trade and other payables 78 546,429 450
286,057 648 653,738,267
Contingencles and commitments 18
Totel equity and liabilities —897.302153 113923973

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.

[y _pd 2:“.';'.-'»-!;

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

I_l NEXT CAPITAL

30 June 30 June
Nole 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Operating revenue 20 241,116,681 353,702,249
Capital gain on sale of investments 21 2,945 852 42,632,288
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investment classified
as 'at fair value through profit or loss’ g (627,943) (1,392,000)
Impairment loss on Trading Right Entitlement Certificale
(TREC) 52 (2,500,000) (14,926,170)
Operating expenses 22 (141,557,656) {156,058,145)
Administrative expenses 23 (98,577,541) (83,362,666)
Finance cost 24 (16,497,138) (30,141,859)
(15,697,636) 110,452,697
Other income 25 20,466,818 29,507,596
Profit before taxation 4,768,182 139,960,293
Taxation 26 _
- Current (32,654,019) (20,874,745)
- Prior 2,331,984 o
- Deferrad 217,165 (16,124 511
(30,104,870) (36,999,256)
Net (loss) / profit for the year __[(25,335,688) 1 1,037
(Loss) / eamings per share - basic and diluted 27 {0.56) 278
The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.
¢ { o8 M e T, B oy
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Annual Report2018 | 20




I! NEXT CAPITAL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)

Net (loss) / profit for the year (25,335,688) 102,961,037
Other comprehensive income:
ltemns that may be reclassified fo profit and loss account
Net unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement

of available for sale investments (9,505,511) 25,134,303
Total comprehensive Income for the year _(34841199) __ 128095340

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chlef Executive Chilef Financlal Officer Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Capiial gain on salo of imestments

Unroalised loss in the value of imvestmonts ol Fair
walue through profil or loss"

Mark-up on bark balances

Profit on exposurs margin

Mark-up on imeeiment in margin finuncing system

Proviskon wguinet meceivables

Recohmblos writhon-off

Dividond incoma

Finanoe cost

Canh fows before working capial changos

Changes In working capital

Dacreaas | (Incresse) In curment ssasts

Trada dobis

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(Decreass) / Inoreass n current llabl lithes

Trade and ol payalbles

Cash panersied fom / (veed in) apembons
Flrvriod 0%l pakd

Teooss pakd

Het cash outfiow from operating ectivities

Paymaenis againat investment In mangin fMinancng sysbem
Recelpts frorm Investment in margin Mnencing system
Proceads from gale of PBX shares

Irvagimants disposad off

Mark-Up recalved on bank balances and exposurs mangin
Mark-Up recehied on Imsestmant In mangin Inancing eystarm
Dividersd redcshned

Long term deposits

Mot cash (outfiow) / Imflow from Investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Het cash (outfiow) / Inflow from finencing activities
Met decrssse In cash and cesh equivalents

Cash and canh aquivalsnts at beginning of te yaar
Cash and cash equlvalents et end of the year

Tha annaxed notas, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of thess financial statements.

Chief Financial Cfficer

L| h:h 9_| &1 ':!‘::. E‘ji'_[_‘."}:)}"i!-
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30 June 30 Juna
s 247
(Rupess)
4,789,182 139,960,283
5,783,068 5,207,335
783,185 486,837
. 1,082,248
2,500,000 14,026,170
(2.045,087) (42,632,286}
827,043 1,362,000
(11,068,778) (15,363,137}
(5,420,324} (5,387,888)
(3,151,058) (7.50:3,804)
2,004,830 -
1,000,000 -
(508,803) (414,564)
18,497,136 |
— 8,182,033
10,031,218 121,835,060
(360,063,153
72,787,310
{533,750,453)
—lT 18T 204
22,700,851 1239.841,108)
{18,497,138) (30,141,858)
(27,830,1 (316,450,671)
 (3,794,135) (7.362,530)|
(165,000} {1,135,000)
(258,041,000} | (1.927.247,793)
167,099,308 1.922,973,383
15,408,000 67,324,040
(8,778,481} (18,800,000}
16,480,100 21,447 685
1,308,553 TATTITE
506,803 414,584
ﬂmﬁ% TR
(41,450,023)] -
887,145,053 851,180,084
(T34, 106, 008) (789,305,817
- ATB30,184
- {139,841,828)
= 200,000,000
(59.500.908) 179,671,633
(142,686,204) {69,715,305)

— 280870057 339,385 383
T,

— 129993833

2 ol

-~

Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

|ssued, Discount  Uneppropriated Unreallsed gein Total
subscribad on lssue of profit / on remessurement
and paid-up shares (Accumulated  of investments
capltal losses)
(Rupees)

Balance as at 1 July 2016 200,000,000 - (37.5909,634) - 162,080,366
Transaction with owners of the Company
lssue of 25,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at 20% 250,000,000 (50,000,000} - - 200,000,000
discount (refar nota 15)
Total comprahensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 102 961,037 - 102,961,037
Unrealisad gain on re-measuremant of available

for sale Investment = = - 134 1

g - 102,861,037 25,134,303 125,085,340

Balance as at 30 June 2017 450000000 _(E0000000) ___GSOS1ATS. __ 2578403 __ 490185706
Balance es at 1 July 217 450,000,000  (50,000,000) 65,061,408 25,134,303 480,185,706
Totsl comprabansive income for the yeer
Loss for the year . - (25,335,688) - (25,335,668)
Unrealizad loss on re-measuremant of availabls

for sale Investment - - -_| 1 {9,505,511)

- - (25,335,658) {9,505,511) (34.841,199)

Transaction with owners of the Company
Cash dividend @ Rs. 1.00 par ordinary share of

Rs. 10 sach for the ysar anded 30 June 2017 - - (45,000,000) - (45,000,000)
Balance as a 30 June 2018 450000000 _(E0000000) ___ (6264285 ___ 16628702 __ 4T0MA4E0T

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an Integral part of these financlal statements.

Chlef Executive Chlef FAinanclal Officer Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.
14

12

22

23

Corporate and general information
Legal Status and operations

Next Capital Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a public limited company in Pakistan on 14
December 2009 under the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance, 1984). The
Company has obtained corporate membership from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited ("the Exchange®)
on 2 February 2010 and was listed on the said Exchange on 27 April 2012.

The Company Is a TREC holder of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and a member of Pakistan
Mercantile Exchange Limited and is accredited broker by Financial Market Association of Pakistan.
The Company is principally engaged in brokerage of shares, stocks, equity and debt securities,
commodities, forex and other financial instruments and corperate finance services. Further, the
Company is engaged in trading in equity and debt securities on its own account through ready, spot
and forward counters of the stock exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8th
Floor, Horizon Tower, Block 1l Clifton, Karachi. The branch offices are situated at;

- House # 43-A/S. Zafar Ali Road, Aziz Avenue Gulberg-5, Lahore; and
- Plaza# 1167-CCA. Block - DD Phase - IV, DHA, Lahore Cantt.

Significant transactions and events affecting the Company's financial position and performance

a) Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act 2017
(the Act) including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Act.

b) For a detailed discussion about the Company's performance please refer to the Directors' report
accompanied in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:0

- International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Beard (IASB) as notified under the Companles Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
investments which are carried at fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company and have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and reporling standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, abilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabllitias that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both current and future
periods,

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect
of the following:

- Property and equipment (note 3.2 and 4);

- Useful lives and impairment of intangible assets {note 3.3 and 5);

- Classification and valuation of investiments (note 3.1, 6 and 9);

- Taxation (note 3.4 and 26);

- Provision against trade debts, investment in marginal financing system and other receivables (note
3.5, 3.6, 10, 11 and 30 ); and

- Contingencies and commitments (note 3.7 and 19)

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant:

- |AS 7, '‘Statement of Cash Flows' amendments introduced an additional disclosure that will enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. Tha
amendment is part of |ASB's Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial
statement disclosure can be improved. In the first yvear of adoplion, comparative information need
not be provided. The relevant disclosure have been made in these financial statements.

= The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation
and presentation of annual financial statements of the Company. The disclosure requirements
contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the elimination of
duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and incorporation of significant
additional disclosures which have been included in these financial statements.

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant:

- There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and new
interpretations that are mandatory for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2017.
However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and
therefore have not been detailed in these financial statements.

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not
yat effective;
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The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:

= Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2
clarify the accounting for cerlain typas of arrangements and are effective for annual pariods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
settled net of tax withholdings; and (¢) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment
from cash-sattled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification andfor
measurament of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized
for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the
Company's financial statements.

= Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to 1AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ - effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a
property to, or from, investment proparty when, and only when there is a change in use. A
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to 1AS 28 ‘Investments in
Assoclates and Joint Ventures'] (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure
investments in associates and joint venturas at fair value through profit or loss, for each
associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore,
similar election is avallable to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value
measurament applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiares. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRIC 22 'Foraign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a
foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the itemn it relates to. The
related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is
raeceivad or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. Tha date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it} would remain the date on which receipt of payment from
advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
antity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

- IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment
be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is
not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial stataments.

= |IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance,
including 1AS 18 'Revenue’, |IAS 11 "Construction Contracts' and IFRIC 13 '‘Customer Lovalty
Programmes'. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of
changes required in revenue recognition policles on adoption of the standard.
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IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and amendment - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019
respectively). IFRS 2 replaces the existing guidance in I1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on
racognition and derecognition of financial instruments from 1AS 39. The Company is currently in
the process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in classification and
measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the
standard.

IFRS 16 'Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16
raplacas existing leasing guidance, including I1AS 17 'Leases’, IFRIC 4 'Determining whather an
Arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating Leases- Incentives' and SIC-27 'Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
reprasenting its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease paymeants. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue
to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company Is currently in the procass of
analysing the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to
use assets and liabilities on adoption of the standard.

Amendment to |1AS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures® - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019).
The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preferance sharas or with
loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term
interests or 'LTI'). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of
both IFRS 9 and |IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be
applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that
on amendment, curtailment or settement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset celling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any sattlement of
the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of
amendments is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address
amendments to following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Jeoint Arrangement - the amendment aims to
clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases ts interast in a joint operation
that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interast
in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure
its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of
dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized
consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

- 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale.
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The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and
are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Financlal Instruments
Availgble-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other three categories (i.e. loans and receivable, held
to maturity and fair value through profit or loss).

Fair value through profit or loss

An instrument is classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss’ if it Is held for trading or is designated
as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated as "at fair value through profit or
loss® if the Company manages such investments and make purchase and sale decisions based on the
fair value in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investmant strategy.
Financial assats which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term price
fluctuation or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short term profit taking are
classified as held for trading or a derivative.

Financial instruments as 'at fair value through profit or loss’ are measured at fair value, and changes
therain are recognised in profit and loss account,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impaiment losses.

Financial fabifities

Financial liabiliies, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective yield method.

Recognitlon

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase of financial agsets is recognised
using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities are recognised.

Financial liabllities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract
or the contract is a derivative contract.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measurad initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments classified as 'available-for-sale’ or fair value
through profit and loss' are measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of financial instruments
classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are recognised in equity until derecognised or impaired, then the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the profit and loss account.
Other financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method, less impairment
losses, if any.

IEXT CAPITAL

Investment In marginal financing system

Payment made as a margin financing included as 'Investment in marginal financing system' at the
fair value of the consideration given. All margin financing transactions are accounted for on the
trade date.

Impalrment

Financlal assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has cccurred after initial recognition of asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss
event (or events) has impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Investments classified as 'available for sale' or *fair value through profit and loss' equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator
that the securities are impaired. Impairment loss on Investment is recognised in the profit and loss
whenever the acquisition cost of investment exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised on equity securities in the profit and loss are not reversed subsequently in profit and loss.

Non financial assots

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash Inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the "cash-genearating unit, or CGU").

An impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in

accordance with International Accounting Standard 39: Financial Instruments; Recognition and
Measurements.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assels and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Property and aquipment
Recognition and measurement

tems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
salf-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other cost direclly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the cost of dismantling
and removing the Iitems and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing
costs.

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Subsegueant expendiiune

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of the part so replaced is
derecognized. The costs relating to day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in
profit and loss account as incurred.

Depreclation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of property and equipment less their estimated residual values using
the straight-line method over their useful lives and is recognised in profit and loss account. Depreciation
on additions to property and equipment is charged from the date asset is available for use, till the date of
its disposal. The estimated useful lives of property and egquipment for current and comparative periods
are disclosed in note 4 to these financial statements.

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.
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This is stated at cost less impairment, if any. The carmying amount is reviewed at each balance sheet
date to assess whether it Is in excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds
estimated recoverable amount, it Is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

Trading Right Enlitferment Certificate (TREC)

Software

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase costs
of software and other directly attributable costs of preparing the software for its intended use.

Computer software is measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses, if any.

Amortisation

Intangible asseis with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, instead they are systematically tested
for impairment at each balance sheet date. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised at
straight line basis over the useful life of the asset at the rate specified in note 5 to these financial
statements.

Taxatlon

Income tax expense comprises curment and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit
and loss account except to the extent that it relates 1o tern recognized directly in other comprehensive
income in which case it is recognized in other comprehansive income,

Cumrent tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates
of taxation after laking into account available tax credits and rebatas, if any. The charge for current tax
includes adjustments to charge for pricr years which arises from assessments [ developments made
during the year, if any.

Dafarred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet methed, in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilties for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or sattlerment or the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively

enacted rates or taxation.

The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the
foresesable future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost less impairment losses, if any. A provision for impairment in trade and other receivables is made
when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are
written off.
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A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditura
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

386 Provislons

3.7  Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability Is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
evants, whose existence will be confirmed only by the cccurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present
lagal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an cutflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.8 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised (nitially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

39 Revenuea recognltion

- Brokerage, commission, corporate finance income and other income are recognised as and when
such services are provided.

- Dhividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Income on continuous funding system transactions and bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportionate basis that takes Into account the effective yield.

- Mark-up income from investment in marginal financing system is calculated on outstanding balance
at agreed rates and recorded in profit and loss account.

3.10 Borrowlng costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred, except to the
extent that they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset (l.e. an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) in
which case these are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

3.11 Foreign currency translation

Monatary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions In foreign currencies are converted into
rupeas at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken
to profit and loss account.

3.12 Basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS s determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary sharas, if any.
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Dividand distributions and appropriaions are reconded in the period in which the distributions and appropriafions are approved.
314 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprisa cash balancas and bank deposits. Running finance under mark-up arrangements that are

repayable cn demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a componant of cash and cash
esquivalent for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

313 Dividend distributions and appropriations

4.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

30 Juna 2018
Leasehold Furniture Vehlcles Computers Total
Improvements and fixtures {owned) {leased) and related
accessories
(Rupees)
As at 30 June 2018
Cost TA1T348 7.716318 14,040,600 - 18,282,571 48,475,837
Accumulated depreciation (4,883,578) (3,700,774)  (9,023,808) - (14,483,548) _ (32,110,805
Net book value 2,523,112 4,006,544 5,025,684 - 4,809,022 16,365,032
Additions during the year - - 2,830,639 - 854,400 3,784,135
Depraciation charge for
the year ___ (873s8s)  (7e4321)  (1,871,30) - (2143848) _ (5783,088)
Mat book value SR 10 APRE o, S, L0 Aeab ) rl
As at 30 Juno 2018
Cost TAIT 348 7,716,318 16,889,238 - 20,247,067 62,260,872
Accumulated depreciation (5,767,161} (4,504.095)  (10,895,208) - (16,627,308) _ (37863 863)
MNet book value B50, 187 3,312 293 5,804, 030 - 3,619,660
Depreciation rates % per annum 20 10 20 20 20-33.33
30 Juna 20107
Leasahosd Fumiture Vahicles Computars Total
improvements  and fiodures {owned) (leasad) and related
accessorias
(Rupaes)
As at 30 Juna 2017
Cost 7,275,348 6785273 11,382,100 - 15,650,586 41,083,307
Accumulated depraciation (3.573,605) (2,684 635)  (7.289,683) - (12645477) _ (26,903,470)
Nat book value 3,301,743 3,800,578 4082407 - 3,005,108 14,189,837
Additions during the year 142,000 931,045 2 667,500 - 3,641,985 7,382,530
Depreciation charge for
the year (318,871) (F25,079)  (1,724,213) - (1,838,072} {(5,207,335)
Net book value 2523772 4006544 5025604 4509022 _ 16365032
As gt 30 June 2017
Cost 7417348 TTIE3E 14,048,600 - 19,292,571 48,475,837
Accumulated depreciation 78] 700,774 ko) - 1 (32,110,805)
et book value 2523772 4006544 5025684 - 4508023 _ 16,385032
Depreciation ralas % per annum 20 10 20 20 20-33.33
41  The costof fully deprecialed assels as at 30 June 2018 Is Rs. 18.02 millon (2017: Rs. 16.410 million).
42 Al immavable assets are sftuated at Head office in Karachi and branch offices in Lahom,
B. INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS Nots 30 June 30 June
2018 207
(Rupeea)
Pakistan Marcantie Exchange - membarship cand 850,000 550,000
Trading Righl Entitlement Certificate (TREC} 51852 2,500,000 5,000,000
Software 53 B18,746 1,408,911

8283748 7356911

Annual Report 2018 1 33




I_' NEXT CAPITAL

51 This represents TREC acquired on surrender of Stock Exchange Membership Card. For details please refer
MNote 6.

PSX vide notice no. PSX/N- 5372, dated 15 September 2017, has maintained the nolicnal value of TRE
Cerlificate at Rs. 2.5 million. According to the Stock Exchange (Corporatisation, Demutualization and
Integration) Act 2012, the TRE Certificate may only be transferred once to a company intending to canmy out
shares brokerage business in the manner to be prescribed. Upto 31 December 2018, the Stock Exchange
shall offer for issuance, 15 TRE Certificales each year in the manner prescribed. After 2019, no restriction
shall be placed on issuance of TRE Cerlificates, The Company has marked lien on TRE certificate in favour
of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) to fulfil the requirement of Base Minimum Capital.

52 Movement in Trading Right Entitiement Certificate (TREC) Nota 30 Juna 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupaeas)
Opening Carrying value 5,000,000 19,926,170
Impairment recognised during the year 521 (2,500,000 {14,926,170)
Closing camying value —2500,000 5,000,000

5.2.1 During the year the Company has measured the TREC on its notional value of Rs. 2.5 million as per the PSX
vide notica no. PSX/N- 7178, dated 10 November 2017,

53 Software Note 30 Juna 30 June
2018 2017
Net carying valuve basis (Rupaes)
Opening net book value 1,408,911 758,548
Additions 165,000 1,135,000
Amortisation charge (753,165) {48B,B37)
Closing net book value B18,748 1,406,911
Gross camying valve
Cost 5,103,860 4,938,660
Accumulated amortisation (4,284 814) (3,531,748)
Met book value 818,748 1,408,911
Amortisation rate 33% 33%
6. INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHANGE
LIMITED ——tlSS0 00, 31183842,
30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Number of Shares)
1,602,853 4,007,383  Opening balance 16,028,530 40,073,830
- {1,602,853) Sold to strategic Investor (40% shares) - (16,029,530)
- (801,477) Sold to general public (20% shares) - (8,014,770)

Closing balance represents 40% shares

1,602,853 1,602,853 (2017: 40% shares) ** &7 16,029 530 16,029,530

= Market value basls

Book value as of 30 June 2018 16,028,530
Unrealized gain as of 30 June 2018 15, 782
Market value as of 30 June 2018 31,658,322

Annual Report 2018 1 34




6.1

6.3

6.4

I! NEXT CAPITAL

These shares wers listed on PSX in the month of June 2017. Therefore, the same were carried at the
market value. At 30 June 2018, the outstanding 40% shares are classified as "Freeze" in the CDC
report of the company.

This represents shares of PSX acquired in pursuance of corporatization and demutualization of PSX as
a public company limited by shares. As per the arrangements the authorized and paid-up capital of
PSX is Rs. 10,000,000,000 and Rs. 8,014,766,000 respactivaly with a par value of Rs. 10 each. The
pald-up capital of PSX is equally distributed among 200 members (termed as “initial shareholders® of
the exchange after corporatization) of PSX by issuance of 4,007,383 shares to each initial shareholder
in the following manner:

1. 40% of the total shares allotted (i.e. 1,602,953 shares) were transferred in the House Account -
CDC of each initial shareholder.

2. 60% of the total shares (i.e. 2,404,430 shares) have been deposited in a sub-account in
Company's name under PSX's participant |D with CDC which will remain blocked until they are
divested to strategic investor(s), general public and financial institutions.

The above shares and TRE Certificate were received against surrender of Stock Exchange
Membership Card. Initially the fair value of both the asset transferred and asset obtalned could not be
determined with reasonable accuracy, the above investment had been recorded at the carrying value
of Stock Exchange Membership Card in Company’s books. The par value of shares received by the
Company had been recognised as available for sale investment and the excess of value of sharas
over the carrying value of membership card was recognised as trading right. No gain or loss had been
recorded on the exchange.

In 2016, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) accorded its approval to
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) for issuing letter of acceptance to a Chinese Consortium for
the strategic sale of 40% of shares against a consideration of £85.6 million at an offer price of Rs.

28 per shara,

PSX vide their letter dated 29 December 2016 informed the Company that 40% (1,602,853 shares),
which were held in blocked form in terms of Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and
Integration) Act 2012, have been sold to Chinese consortium by the Divestment Committee at an offer
price of Rs. 28 per share. Subsequently, a formal signing ceremony was held on 20 January 2017 to
mark the signing of the Share Purchase Agreement between the Chinese Consortium and the equity
sale committee of PSX. The sale was complsted on 10 March 2017.

As per the above mentioned letter, 10% of the consideration amount was retained for a period of one
year to settle any culstanding liabilities of PSX and as such the portion of sale after deducticn, if any,
will b2 remitted to the designated bank account maintained by the Company after the expiry of the
specified time period. Accordingly, the Company has received entire sale proceeds for said
1,602,953 shares.

After divestment of 40% equity stake of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited in favor of Chinese
Consortium, PSX vide their letter dated 06 June 2017 informed the Company for divestment of further
20% of PSX shares upon successful completion of book building process. This amount was secured
by a bank guarantee taken from MCB Bank.

The Company has pledged the shares with PSX to fulfil the requirement of Base Minimum Capital.
For details, refer note 34,
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LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note 30 Juna 30 Juna
2018 207
(Rupees)
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited o1 5,425,000 21,035,829
Cantral Deposiory Company of Pakistan Limitad 125,000 125,000
Mational Claaring Comparny of Pakistan Limited 1,300,000 1,300,000
Paklstan Mercantlle Exchange 72 1,250,000 1,250,000
Sacurity deposit against office premises 1,841,200 838,200
Security doposit agoinst PS0 eard 120,000 120,000

70061200 24670029

Thits includes deposits placed with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for taking exposures in regular, future markel and cash deposited
against BMC requirement, during the cument year, the company deposited Rs. 5 million for the requiremant of BMC,

This represant deposits placad with Pakistan Mercantle Exchange for laking exposures in commodity markat.
DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net
Deductible / (taxable) temporary dfferance arising in respect of.

Accelerated depreciation | amortisation (339,248) {1,503,919)
LiabiSty against assel subject lo finance lease - 14,427
Carmy forward losses 1,848,701 2,258,371
Unrealised loss on investmant 84,181 417,600

Reconclllation of deferred tax

41 AL, 104470,

Balanco as &l Rocognised in Rocognisod Balanco sa sl Rocognised in Rocognised in Balanco as at
01 July 2018 profit and Inequity 30June 20T profit and loss mqulty 30 June 2018
loas account account
(Rupess)
Daforred tix assol arising due lo:
Acooierabed bt deprediation !
amortization (4.937.708) 3433787 - (1.503,919) 1,164,671 (339,248)
Uabiiity againat assel subjoct
io financs lsase 14427 - - 4427 (14.427) - -
Unmealizad loss on irvestment - 417,600 - 417,800 (323.408) - 4,18
Cary forward losses 2 2hr 268 (19.975.498) - 2,258,371 1509, 5T0) - 1,846,701
i 18,1231 o LIBAATO 217,165 : 149184
SHORT TERM INVESTMENT CLASSIFIED AS AT FAIR VALUE Note 30 Juna 30 Juna
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS' 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Listod shares 91 _12004800 _ 15408000
Listod shares
30 June 30 Juna 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2017 2018 2047
(Mumber of shares) Mame of Investes Carrying Market Markat
amount value valug
(Rupees)
600,000 600,000  Pakistan Siock Exchange Limited 12457246 11,850,000 15,408,000
3,000 Meoazan Bank Lim#ted 265197 244,500 -
Unrealized logs on remeasuramant of investment
ciassified as ‘ot fair value through profit or loss
account’ (62T 843} - -
RO JZOHS00, _15309.000,

INVESTMENT IN MARGINAL FINANCING SYSTEM

This amount is given as a Margin Financing (MF) to our cllants through National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limied, This amount
is secursd against securiies of clients held in House accounts under pledged status. The Company is financing on Financing
Participation Ratio (FPR) of maximum 75% and charging mark-up upto the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 8%.
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CAPITAI
Notle 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2017
(Rupeas)
Invastment in MF at beginning of the year 4,274 411 -
Total placements during the year 258,841,980 1.8927.247.783
Total release against MF during the year (201,150,385) (1,929,966,045)
Realised income on MF 1,309,653 6,966,434
Unrealised Income on MF 1,841 26,229
(197,999,309) (1,822,973,382)
Balance at end of the year —al 082 4.274.411
TRADE DEBTS
Recelvable from cllents on account of:
- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients 11.2& 71.3 113,685,650 379,923,978
= Brokerage commission
- Equity shares 11,082,834 15,237,971
- Money market and forex 2825438 2,279,771
= Consultancy fee B 703 31,367,298
138,048,515 428,809,018
- Pravision for doubtful debts 71.7 (2,084 B38) =

Provialon for doubtful debts

Opaning balance

—133. 853878, 338,808,018

Provislon for doubtful debts 2,084 639 -
Clasing balance 2004830 -

This includes trade debts of Re. Nil {30 June 2017: Rs. 0.330 million) receivable from relatad parties.

Aging analysis

The aging analysis of the trade debts relating to purchase of shares |s as follows:

Note Amount Custody value
(Rupeas)
Upto five days 774 111,860,238 171,221,928
More than five days 714 1,725312 376,802,223
—113.885850
These custody values are shown at market value after applying haircut of straight 15%.
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Note 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2017
(Rupeeas)
Deposit against exposure margin 727 218,053,084 242 320,010
Deposit against Marginal Trading Servicesa 122 8,877,048 24,804,180
Security deposits 2.3 1,128,678 1,128,679
Prepaid axpanses 3,338,918 4,473,542
Sales tax receivables 714,004 3,499,163
Intarast receivable against bank deposits 1,045,120 1,163,080
Recelvable from PSX against disposal of shares 8.3 - 4,488,268
Mobllization Advance 124

—__5400000 - _
—238356829 281876933
This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin

in respect of trade In future and ready market. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 2.75% to
3.80% (30 June 2017 2.75% to 3.1%) per annum.
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This reprasents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposura margin against
trade and sustained losses to date on Marginal Trading Services. These deposits carmy profit at rates ranging from
2.75% to 3.60% (30 June 2017; 2.75% to 3.1%) per annum.

This includes security deposit against leased asset of Rs. 0.247 million and a client's IPO of Rs, 0.718 million.

The amount has been pald to a contractor for renovation of new business office of the Company.

ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considerad good
Advance agalnst salary - securad
Other receivables and advances - unsecunad

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks:
Saving accounts - profit and loss account

Current accounts - conventional
Cument accounts - shariah compliant

Cash in hand

Nota 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
{(Rupeas)

178,081 306,237
4,240,184 2,046,131
4.415& 2 352@63
f4.14& 7142 114,824 BOT 200,696,032
12,081,835 68,673,156
74111 74,732
126,080,853 260,643,920
3,000 26,137

12alnnaﬂ_ 269,670,057

Profit rate on saving accounts ranges from 3.75% to 4.60% per annum (30 June 2017: 3.75% to 4.1% per annum).

This include Rs. 112.889 milllen (30 June 2017: Rs. 184.503 million) kept in designated bank accounts maintained

on bahalf of clients.

AUTHORISED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and pald-up capltal

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

Issue of right shares

Pattern of sharehaolding

Calagories of Sharsholdors Rumber of
shares hold sa
at 1 July, 2017

Companiag

= MCE Bank Limitad - Troasury 4,360,500

= Magle Loaf Coment Factory Limied 3.37T5,000

- Abbas Corporaticn (Pvi] Limited 500,000

Individunks

= Mr, Muhommad Nejom Al 12,388 250

= Mr. Arif Habib 2,800,000

= Mr. Srosh Tahir 3,575,000

= Mr. Muhammad Ahmad Fhan Malic 2,017,500

= Mr. Adnan Africl 4,500,000

= Qthor individunls 11,400,750

A5,000,000

% of
sharos

T.50%
1.11%

Rumbaer of
shares
purchased

151 450,000,000 200,000,000

- 250,000,000
350,000,000, 450,000,000

Numberof  Numbaer of shares % of shares.
shores sold hold as on 30
during the June, 2018
pediod
- 4,360,600 0.66%
- 3,375,000 7.50%
500,000 1.11%
- 12,388,250 T AT%
5,000 2,885,000 BAY%
¥ 4 325,000 Ba1%
183,000 1,834,800 4.08%
425,000 4,838,000 10.87%
B98,000 10,405,750 1%
45,000,000 100.0%
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18.2.1

CAPIT/
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Nota 30 Juna 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)
Trade creditors 18.1& 182 110,177,587 199,054 122
Payable to National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited 06,487,559 237,848,781
Accrued commission to traders 78.3 2,200,544 7,112,339
Accrued salaries and other expenses 268,803 4,714,430
Auditor's remunaration 800,000 785,000
Tax deducted at source 2,603,163 10,114,840
Provision for sales tax - 2,560,063
Provision for worker's welfare fund - 1,522,779
Commission payable 18.4 7,717,309 82,310,810
Accrued Expenses 1,185,479 73,070
Accrued Markup 1,216,451 -
Other payables 1,038,380 333,116
—223098.200 546420430

This includes trade payable of Rs. 0.151 million {30 June 2017: Rs. 26.124 million) payable to

ralated parties.

This includes Rs. .25 million trade payable in respect of two days trading with T+2 settlement.

This includes commission payable of Rs. 0.213 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 4.062 million) to related

parties.

This represents commission payable to a foreign brokerage house.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passad an Ordear for recovary of Sindh sales tax on advisory
sarvices amounting to Rs. 871,581 for the tax period July 2011 to June 2012, The Company filed
appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRE) against the said order. The Commissioner Appeals
(SRB) passed the final order dated 21 November 2014 for recovery of assessed amount Rs.
871,581 and default surcharge to be calculated at the time of payment.

The Company filed the petition against the order to the Honourable High Court of Sindh ("The Court™)
and the Court granted an interim order dated 28 November 2014 and restrained the SRB from
demanding any payment till further orders by the Court. The Court via its order dated 28 August
2015 disposed off the sald petition and directed the Company to pursue the appeal before the
SRB-Tribunal.

The management is of the view that such services were not taxable under the Sindh Sales Tax Act,
2011 and the Company was duly paying Sindh Sales Tax on brokerage services and filing Sindh
Sales Tax accordingly. The Company is confident of a favourable outcome of the same, therefore,
no provision has been made in this regard.

Commitments

For sale of quoted securities under fulure contracts against

counter commitments EI'IWE'IE 4l223 000
For purchase of quoted securities under future contracts
against counter commitments 200,844,325 55,547,935

The Company have unavailed running finance facilities with Sindh Bank Limited and MCB Bank Limited
amounting to Rs. 250 million and Rs. 400 million respectively, which carry markup at the rate of

3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% and 1 month KIBOR plus 1.50% and will mature on 30 Junea 2019 and 31
March 2019 respectively.
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OPERATING REVENUE

Brokerage Income
Advisory / consultancy fes
Dabl capilal market services

Less: Sales tax on services

Brokerage Income - net of sales tax

Equity brokorage
= Institutional customers
- Retail Clignts

I_l NEXT CAPITA

Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
{Rupseas)

207 &202 201,388,112 281,830,873
88,248,749 117,852,669

2 825 000 -
272,481,861 395,683,542
31,245,170 45,981,263

241,116,691 353,702,249

107,731,224 155,021,991
70,488 344 84,385,861

178219508 240407852

This inciudes brokerage eamed from related parties amounting to Rs. 3.225 millien (30 June 2017 Rs. 3.966 million).

CAPITAL GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS

Gain on sale of PSX shares
Gain / (loss) on sale of other companies shares

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Consultancy fea

Sub-undenwriting commission
Commission and referral fea
Sendce and transaction charges
Fees and subscription

= 43,278,740
2,845 852 (847 452)
-1 R I .-

52,783,934 42,835,080

221 16,033,314 12,816,291
222 13,297,082 36,888,000
223 32,688,087 38,825,783
17,569,605 18,986,687

9,184,644 7,807,304

—lALERLEEE. 120005000,

This includes consultancy fee 1o the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 8.083 millien (30 June 2017: Rs.

6.159 million).

This sxpense was paid as per underwriling agresment entered with several parties for the underwriting of shares.

This includes commission to the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 20.703 million (30 June 2017 Rs. 22.062

milllion),
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salares, wages and other benefits
Telephone and communication charges
Rant rates and taxes

Utility charges

Vahicle running expenses
Dapreciation

Amortisation

Legal and professional changes
Insurance

Printing, staticnerny and postage charges
Office supplies

Office repair and malintenance

Feas and subscription

Travelling and antertainment charges
Adveriisement axpanses

Auditor's remunaration

‘Workers' Walfare Fund

Security

Frovision against recelvables
Recoivables written-off

Right lssuance expanse
Miscellansous

231 40,388,020 36,083,484
4,418,016 4,338,910
17,451,068 12,015,270
2,321,543 2,132,930
2,521,551 1,717,164
s 5,783,058 5,207,335
53 753,165 486,837
1,338,560 437,750
1,558 444 1,218,615
1,212,485 1,783,522
830,194 962,831
2,432,611 2,118,114
1,881,182 2,852,517
5,577,683 4,085,364
444, 266 517,040
232 1,613,825 1,635,000
& 1,032,248
2,482 B35 2,307,118
2,084,639 -
1,000,000 62,148
B 901,790

1

2473378 £485,079
—PRATTEN. . BA.a67.566,
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This includes remuneration to Chief Execulive Officer amounting to Rs. 9.0 million (30 June 2017: Rs.

9.0 million).

Auditors' remuneration Note

Audit fee

Half yearly review

OCther services [ cerlifications
Out of pocket expenses

FINANCE COST

Mark up charges 24.1

Bank charges

This includes Rs. 5.022 million (30 June 2017: Rs.17.935 million) paid to related parties.

OTHER INCOME

Mark-up [ interest on:

- Bank balances - profit and loss account
- Investment in marginal financing system
Profit on exposure margin

Dividend income

Others

TAXATION

Relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% (30 June 2017: 31%)
Effect of income subject to final tax regime

Tax effect of change in tax rates

Tax effect of amount relating to prior year

Tax effect of minimum tax and altemate corporate tax (ACT)
Others

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)
300,000 300,000
150,000 150,000
965,000 860,000
198,825 325,000
1,613,825 1,635,000
11,024,300 26,601,022
5,472,830 3,540,837
16,497,139 30,141,859
11,069,778 15,363,137
3,151,056 7,503,604
5420324 5,397,889
506,803 414,564
318,859 828,402
20,466,818 29,507,596
4,769,182 139,960,293
1,430,755 43,387,691
23673185  (14,003,811)
- (558,355)
(2,331,984) -
7,332,914 8,343,552
- (79,821)
30,104,870 36,999,256
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The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensures
that tha sufficient provision for the purposes of taxation is available which can be analysed as follows:

2017 2016 2015
(Rupees)
Income tax provision for the
year (as per accounts) 20,874,745 7,454,188 3,544,664
Income tax as per tax
retum / assessment 18,542,761 7,546,165 4,949 470

The difference mainly pertains to cost allocation between NTR and FTR income in the tax provisions
booked in financial statements and filed in returns In respective years.

The income tax retumns of the Company have been filed up to tax year 2017 under the Universal Self
Assessment Scheme. This scheme provides that the return filed is deemed to be an assessment order.
The returns may be selected for audit within five years. The Income Tax Commissioner may amend
assessment if any objection is raised during audit.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant
Commissioner Inland Revenue In respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2016 on
account of short deduction of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.10 million.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the
Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax
year 2011 on account of short deduction of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs.
0.876 million. Against the said order the company has preferred an appeal before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. The case has been
heard, however, the decisicn in appeal is still pending.

Order for amendment in assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has
been passed by the tax authorities for the tax year 2011 on the basis that the tax deduction under
saction 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance was minimum tax, therefore, no refund is allowable to the Company
creating tax demand of Rs. 26,698. The Company has preferred an appeal before the Commisioner
Inland Revenue { Appeals ) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, where hearing in appeal
Is pending.

(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

(Loss) [ profit for the year (25,335,688) 102,961,037
(Number)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 45 000,000 37,033,424
(Rupees)

{Loss) / eamings per share - basic and diluted (0.56) 2.78
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Diluted samings par shars has nol been presented as the Company has nol lssusd any instrument which would have an impact
on eamings per shane when exercised,

The Company with the approval of shareholdars by way of special resolution in genoral meoting held on 13 Septemboer 2011 has
antersd into a Stock Option Agreament dated Tth October, 2011 with the Chis! Executive (CEQ), wharsby the CEQ has baen
granted Options to subscrite for the ordinary shares of the Company. |ssuance of shares by the Company against worciss of
the Options is, however, subject to the approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) under
soction 83 of Companies Act 2017 (previcusly section 88 of Companies Ordinance, 1584). The numbar of sham options granted
an up 1o 2 million shares with consideration in cash having an exorcise price of Rs. 10 per share. The exorciza parod is five
yesars and six months after one year from the date of listing of the Company.

SECF vide order no. CSOVCUER2017-5920 daled 15th May, 2017 has disregarded the application for approval. The Company filed
an appeal on 16th June, 2017 against the order under section 33 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act,
1687,

During the yaar, the Appeliate Bench of SECP vide latler no. 48(33VB-IV/CSDMT daled 26th September 2017 has passed an
order whentby the impugned omder has been set aside and the appeal of the Company has been allowed regarding the grant of
share options to the CEQ basod on special resolution passed by the sharoholdens In genoral meating held on 13 Septembar 2011.
As the vesling condition attached 1o thia oplion has been fulfiled and the objection placed by SECP vide impugned order has
been remeoved, the share oplion can be exarcised by the CED till the axpiry date of 25 October 2018,

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Ralated parties comprise of associated companies, directors, key managemant parsonnal and close family members of the
dirsctors. Transactions with relatled parties may be camed out at negoliated rales. Remuneration and banalis to executhves of
the Company one In accordance with the terms of thelr employment.

Transacticns with related parties ars antered into at rates negotiated with them. Detalls of transactions and balances with
rolated parties, other than those which have been specifically clsclosed elsewhens in this financial statement ars as follows:

Directors 30 Juna 30 Juna

208 207
(Rupses)

Short term loan from related pariles

Opening balance 47,185,738 33,373,877

Recaived during the year 541,083,358 713,827 228

Transfor from long term loans - 50,624,882

Repayments during the year __(648,993,087) __ (750,740,048)

Closing balanca 41,258,011 47,185, 738

Intereat on ahort term loan

Intarest accrued during the year 5,021,760 8,232.413

Interest paid during the year (5,021,760) (8.232,413)

Long term loan from redated parties

Opening balance - 92,211,834

Received durng the year - 47,630,185

Transfer to short term loans - (50,624, 882)

Repayments during the year - (B9,216,847)

Closing balancs = -

Intereat on long term loan

Intarest accrued durng the yoear - 8,702, 2682

Interest pald during the yoar - (8,702,282)

The loans oblained from related paries amounting to RS, 541,063 million (30 June 2017: Rs, 784,552 millien) out of which Rs,
546.9584 milion (30 June 2017: Rs. 750.740 million} was repald during the ysar and Rs. 41.255 millon (30 June 2017: Rs. 47.185
milion) s outstanding at year and. Thess loans cary mark-up rate 11.26% to 11.92% (30 June 2017: 11.20% 1o 11.28%) par
annum. These loans were oblained to meel the working capital requirements of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including certain benefits 10 the chief axecutive,
directors and executives of the Company | as followsa:

Directors
30 Juno 30 Jun 3 June 30 Juna 30 June 30 Juna
2018 207 2018 2017 208 2017
(Rupocsa)
Managerial rerruneration 8,000,000 8,000,000 #0058 88T 10,000,000 28,337 60D 20,713,111
Heusa ront aliowanos 2,400,000 2,400,000 1,628, 88T 4,000,000 11,335,044 B,285.244
Madical 500,000 600,000 408,587 1,000,000 2833781 207131
Commission - - 23,567, TED 2,062,119 B2T43TE -
Consultancy fee - = 8,083 214 6,150,051 - -
Dirmclons® foas - - - - -
—0R000000 8000000 _  SEOSORSS 43221210 SO.T80690 31060666

Mumbsr of Porsons 1 i 3 3 2 18
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Thao chiaf cxecutive and cortaln exscutives of the Company have been provided with froe use of Company’s maintained cars
as per thelr terms of employment,

Commission and consultancy fees Includes amount pald to non-eeecutive directors of the Company, amounting Rs. 20,185
million (30 Juna 2017: Rs. 21.861 milien) and Rs. 6,083 milkon (2017: Rs. 6.159 milion), respectively,

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per Companies Act, 2017,
No fees s paid to directors for meetings ettended by them.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s activities expose it to a varety of financlal risks: credit sk, liquidity rsk and market rizk (including curmency
rigk, interesl rate rigk and price rsk). The Company’s overall sk management policy focuses on the unpradictabaity of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverss effects on the Company’s Minancial pedomance.

Rizk managemaent framework

Tha Board of Direclors of the Company has an overall responsiblity for the establishment and ovarsight of the Company's risk
managesmant framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's sk managemant
policies.

Thie Company’s risk managoment policios are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 1o sot
appropriate sk limits and contrels, and to monitor risks and adharence to limits, Risk management policles and systems are
raviewed regulardy to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Crodit risk

Credit risk |5 the sk that cne party to a financlal Instrumant will fall to discharge an obligation and causa the other party to Incur
a financial less, without taking Into account the falr value of any collateral, Crodit rsk arses from the inability of the Bsuers of
the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties in case of placements or other amangements o fulfil their
obligations. Thens s & possibility of default by paricipants and of fallure of the finandal markets, the depesiodas, the
soettiemonls of clearing aystem ate,

Exposure lo crodl rsk

Cradit risk of the Company ardses principally from its trade debts, long term deposits, advances, deposits and other recelvablas
and bank balances. The camying amount of thess financial assels represents the maxdmum credit axposure.

Credii rsk managemant

To raduce the exposuns to credit risk, the Company has developed its own risk managemant policies and guidelines whareby
clients are provided trading limits acconding to their worth and proper margins are collected from and maintained by the clients,
The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the clients and makes provision against those balances
considersd doubtful for recovery,

The Company’s policy is o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the intemal sk management policies and
Investment and oporational guidelings.

All transactions in Ested securities are sotfied using National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, baing the central clearing
company of the country. The rsk of default in such transactions is considensd minimal, as delivery of securities is guarantoed
by the stock exchange., The Company does not expect to Incur material credit losses on its financlal assets.

T macdmurm exposune (o credit sk before any credit enhancements at 30 June 2018 is the camying amount of the financial
aaaels As sot out balow:

Nota 30 June 30 June
o018 2017
(Rupess)
Long term deposits r 10,081,200 24,670,029
Investment in manginal finencing system 12 85,217,082 4,274,411
Trace debls 71 133,953,878 428,808,018
Advances 13 178,081 306,237
Deposits 121, 1228 123 237,858,760 258,252 879
Other recelvables 13 4,240,184 6,534,389
Cash and bank balances 4 126,880,853 260,643,820
—5E8488,006 _1,002,450,883
Secured m.m.ua 4,580,643
Unsecursd BET.810,245

MM
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30.1.1 The aging for trade debtors and other receivables at the balanca sheetl date is as follows:

2018 2017
Gross Impalrment Gross Impairmant
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Mot past due 121,382,866 - 384 841,558 -
Past due 15 - 30 days 327,710 - 3,288,570 -
Past due 31 days - 180 days 4,624,488 - 26,274,846 -
Past due 181 days - 365 days 4,050,814 - 3,863,768 -
More than 365 days 2,782 639 2,094 638 -
—130.048510 2094099 :

Except for the impaimment disclosed above, no impaimment has been recognized in respect of these recetvables as the security
against the same is adequate. The Company Is doing its utmost 1o recover the amount from the doubiful clients and is confident
that majority of the amount would be recovered based on the past experience and the recovery efforts being camied out by the
Company.

Credit rating and collaterals

Bank balances are only hald with reputable banks having socund credit ralings. The credit quality of the Company’s bank
balances can be assessed with reference of exdemal credil ratings as follows:

Rating Short term Long term 30 June 2018
Agency rating rating (Rupees) (%)
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A+ ARN 121,524,134 96%
Hahib Matropolitan Bank Limiad PACRA At Al 3,627,116 %
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A+ Ab+ 1,132,356 1%
The Bank of Punjab PACRA At AR 203,792 0%
Meazan Bank Limited JCR-VIS A+ AR 74,111 0%
Habiy Bank Limited JCRVIS A1+ AAn 60,084 0%
J5 Bark Limited PACRA A1+ Ab- 53,444 0%
Askar Bank PACRA A+ A+ 3,814 0%
Sindh Bank JCRVIS A+ AR 1.418 0%
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA 103 0%
126,860,853 100%
Rating Short term Leng term 30 June 2017
Agency rating rating {Rupees) (%)
MCE Bank Limited PACRA A+ AR, 288,517,200 100%
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA, Ael+ AR 552,222 0%
Tha Bank of Punjab PACRA A+ AA 262,282 0%
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limied PACRA, A1+ Ads 204,974 0%
Meazan Bank Limied JCRVIS A1+ AR 74,732 0%
J3 Bank Limited PACRA A+ AA- 38,593 0%
Askari Bank PACGRA A+ Ab+ 3,814 0%
Fayaal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AR 103 0%
269,643,920 100%

Concentraltion of crealf risk

Concantration of credit risk exists when changes in econamic of industry factors simitarty affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregats credit esposure Is significant in redation to the Company's total credit expesure. The Company's portfolio of
financial instruments is diversified and transactions are entered into with credit-worthy countarparties of diverss naturas
thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credi risk.

302 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk s the risk that tha Company will encounter difficulty in mesting its financial obligations as they fall dus. Liquidity

risk arises because of the pessibility that the Company could be required to pay its liablities earfier than expected or difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments assoclated with financial Rabiities as they fall due.
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Liquldity flak managemant

Pruedand liquidity sk management impliea maintaining sufficlent cash and markelable securities, the avalablity of commitied
crodit faclities and the ability to close oul market positions dus o the dynamic nature of the business. The Company’s treasury
aims at malntaining flaxdbiliity In funding by keeping committed credid lines avallable. Tha following are the contractual
maturities of financial liabilties, including interost paymaents:

20 June H18
Carrying Contractual Less than Upto One Two
amaount cash flows mlx ane to two to flve
manths yoar yoars Yo
(Rup-sas)
Linblity against asset
subject 1o finance leass - - - - -
Unclnimed dividond 3,051,638 {3,051.638) (3,051 ,838)
Short teern loans from
rolaled porties - unsocured 41,256,011 {41,258.011) . (41,256,011) - -
Shart term loan - unsecured 18,983,742 (18,953, 742) - (18,853,743) =
Trade and cthes payabies 223 BOB 288 {22000 208 = :
BN T TR ST R P L T ST - A S =
30 Juna 2017
Maturition
Caemying Contrachisd Lexs than Upio Qne T
amount cash fows s ong e two 1o fve
manths yar YO b L]
(Rupess)
Linbdity mgairst aasel
subject 1o financo loass 48,000 (48,084) - (48,000) -
Short tnern lpans from
relaled parthes - unsecuned 47,185,739 {47,165,738) . (47,185,758)
Short term loan - unsecursd 80,074,588 {B0,074,588) M-ﬂﬂm

Trade and other payabies __ SABAZ0AS0 _ (BABA20AS0) __(545,420.450)
58730007 (653.700207) —(540420450) (IOT0AATTT

On the balance sheel date, the Company has caah and bank balances of Rs, 126,984 milion (2017 Rs. 269,870 million) as
manticned in nole 14,

Market rlak

Markat risk |s tha risk that the vaiue of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market Interest rates
of tho market price due to a change in credit rating of the Issuer or the instrument, change in market santimonts, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

Market risk compsises of three types of Ask: currency riak, Interest rate fak and prica riak.

Markst rlek managemeant

The Company manages markel fsk by monitorng exposure on markelable securities by following the intermal risk management
and imaestment policios and guidelings.,

Cursncy risk

Curmency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumant will fuctuato because of changes in
foralgn exchange rates. The Company, at present, Is not exposed to currency risk as all ransactions are camied out in Pak
Rupaas,

Interost rele sk
Interest rate rsk iz the risk that the valua of a financial instrument will fluctuate due fo changes in the market yiald.
Al the reporting date, the interest refe profile of the Company's interast bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Effactive Intarsat Rate Carrylng Amaount
2018 207 208 2T
Variable rate Instruments (Percontaga) (Rupoos)
Flnancial asseis
Bank balances TSI AS%  ATSNIAt%  ___IZ0R008G) . 208643920,
Flruarssi Eabditvas
Linbilition against assots subject to finance lease - RLE LR LE -
Short teern loans from rolated partes - unsacuned TL20% 10 11.92%  11.20% lo 11.28%
Short teamn loan - unsecured 2% 10 11.0% 11.20% 10 11.28% jm
Flxed rote nstrumants

Doeposits with National Clearing Company of
Paldstan Limited ZTE% 10 360%  TRWION 226730010, . 21120200,
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The Company doas not account for any fixed rate financial azsets and Habilites at falr value through profit or loss, Therefore a
change in interest rate at the reporting date would not have affected the after tax profit of the Company.

Fair Value sansitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensltivity analysls for varlable rate Instruments

A change of 100 basis poinis in interest rales at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit and
loas by the amounts shown balow. This analysis assumes that all other vadables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for June 2017.

Profit and loss Equity
100 bps 100 bps 100 bpa 100 bps
Incroase docraan Incroase decraase
(Rupees) {Rupsea)

As at 30 June 2018
Variable rate instruments 1080271 (1,080,271} 1,080,271 {1,080,271)
As at 30 June 2017
Variable rate instruments 2,085,208 2,065, 208) 2,085,208 (2,085,208)
Price risk

Price risk includes equity price risk which i the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as a result of changes in
the levels of KSE-Index and the value of individual shares.,

The table below summanises the Company's equity price risk as of 30 June 2018 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10%
increase and & 10% decrease In market prices as al the year end.

Falr value Hypothetlcal  Estimated falr Hypothetical Hypothstical Hypothetical
prica change valun after Incraase / Incraase | Incrasse [
hypothetical (decreass)in  (decresss)in OC1  (decreass)in
changa In price profit / (loss) sharsholders’
bafore tax equity
(Rupaes)

30 June 2018 43, 7E2A22  10% Incroase 48,128,104 1,209,450 3,185,852 4375282
10% decrease 36.377.540 {1,208.450) (3,185,852) (4,375,282)
30 June 2017 BE5T1.EI3  109% increase 62,228,016 1.540,800 4,118,384 5657, 154
10% decreass 50,614,850 (1,540,800} (4,118,354) (5.657.184)

The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be consldened to be the best or worst case scenarios.
Opecational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or Indirect koss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructune supporing the Company's cparations eithar intemally within the Company or ecdeamally at the
Company's sefvice providers, and from extemal factors other than credit, market and louidity risks such as those arsing from
legal and regulatory requinements and generally accepted standards of invesiment managemant behavior. Operational risks arse
from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company's oblective Is to manage operational risk 50 as 1o balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation
with achisving its obiective of generating ratums for stakehaiders.

Senlor managemant ensures that the Company’s staff have adequate training and experence and fosters effective
communication related to operational dsk management.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair valus is an amount for which an assel could be ecxchanged or a liabiity seltled batwesn knowledgeable wiling parties in
am's langth transaction. The table below analysis financial instruments camied at fair valuae, by valuation method. The differant
levels (methods) have been dafined as foliows:

Lovel 1: Fair value measuremeants using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o liabilities.

Lewvel 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsanable for the
assel or lability, either direcly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (.0, derved from prices).

Leved 3: Fair value measunements using inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable markel data (l.e.
unchservable inputs).
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Fair valua of the financial assels that are traded in active marketa are based on quoted market prices. The following table ahows fair values
of financial assets and financial labiliies, including thelir levels in the fair value hierarchy, These financial assets and finandal lbilites,
excepl for 80% investment in shares of PSX, are shorl term and their fair value approxdmates their carmyéng value,

30 Jurs 218

finmncial Instruments

Hald for Avaliable for
trading nalo

Carrying valus Fair velus

Loansend  Other Nnanclsl  Leval 1 Level 2

maturity Recelvables labliltles

(Ruposs)

Financlal sssets moasured
ut falr value

Invastrmant In ahares of Pakdalan 12,004, 500 3,658,522
Slock Exchangs LimBsd

Financial sszets nol messursd
at falr valus
Inveslment in marginal frandng
Long term deposits

Trade debts

Deposits
Achrancos and other recelvablss
Cash and bank balancas

85,217,082
10,081,200
133,053,078
220817813
4418,225
126,083 B53

1 31

570,250,149

Financial linbliithes nat
measured st falr valus

Shied tarm keans from related

pasties - unsscured . -
Shod tevm kean - unsecursd - -
Uncisimed dividend = =
Currend portion of Babilties
againal aasots subject to
fnance ease - -
Trixda and other payablos - -

- 41,268,011
- 18,953,742
- 3,051,638

On balancs sheat

Mnancisl Instruments

Financial assets maeasured
at falr valus

Irvestmeont in shares of Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limied 15,408,000 41,163,843

Fnancial essets not messured
at falr valua

Invastmant In marginal fnanang . -
Lirsg tamn dapoatts - -
Trada debis - -
AcvERnces, deposis and

Cash and bank balances - -

- - 56,571,833

& 274411 -
24,670,029 -
428,808,018 -
277 A3, 280 -

2350388 -
269,670,057 -

3,007 179,273 =

Financial lablites not
moasured st falr value

Sho o loans from rmlated
partios - unsocured - -
Shorl torm loan - unsecured . -
Uncisimed dividend - -
Curren portion of Eabviities
againsl asses subject to
Finance lease - -

- AT, 185,730
- 60,074,088

- 48,000
- 546, 420,450

Trace and othes paynbies . -

- 853, 738, 267
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The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios and optimal
capital structure in order to ensure ampla availability of finance for its existing operations, for maximizing
shareholder's value, for tapping potential investment opportunities and o reduce cost of capital.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
canditions, Furthermore, the Company finances its operations through equity, borrowing and management of
its working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix batween various sources of finance to minimise
risk.

Met capital requirements of the Company are set and regulaled by PSX. These requirements are put in place to
ensure sufficlent solvency margins and are based on excess of current assets over current liabilities. The
Company manages its net capital requirements by assessing its capital structure against required capital level
on a regular basis,

OPERATING SEGMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment which Is consistent
with the intemal reporting usad by the chief cperating decision-maker. The chief oparating decision-maker is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker relating to the Company's assets,
liabilities and performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles
of approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

There wara no change in the reportable sagment during the year.
All non-currant assets of the Company as at 30 June 2018 are located in Pakistan.
BASE MINIMUM CAPITAL

In compllance with the Regulation 19.3.1 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, every Trading
Right Enfitternent Certificate (TREC) holder registered as a broker under Brokers and Agents Registration
Rules, 2001, Is required to maintain a Base Minimum Capital (BMC) in the amount and form as prescribed in
the Rule on the basis of Assets Under Custody (AUC). As per the said regulation, as at 30 June 2018, the
Company is required to maintain BMC of Rg. 26 million,

The naticnal value of the TREC and the break-up value of the shares for the purpose of BMC is determined by
the PSX as under:
30 Juna
2018
(Rupees)

Trading Right Entittement Certificates 2,500,000
Cash deposit 5,000,000
Securitized 1,602,953 shares at Rs. 19.75 per share 31,658,322

—39.156,927,

Pakistan Stock Exchange vide their circular No. PSX/N - 4700 dated 08 August 2017, allowed the brokerage
houses to utilise the shareholding of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited shares which 15 laid as freazed with
Central Depository System against the deposit requirement of Base Minimum Capital (BMC).

RESEARCH ANALYST

At presant, the Company amploys six members in its research department (including head of research, two
sanlor analysts, one junior analyst, a libradan and a data administrator). All members raport to Head of
Research who In tum reports to the Chief Executive Officer.

Compensation structure of research analysts is flat and Is subject to qualification, experience and skill set of
the person. Howaver, the compansation of anyone employed In the research department does not in any way
depend on the conlents / oulcome of research report.
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Dwuring the year, the personnel employed in the Research Deparlment have drawn an aggregate salary and
banefits amounting to Rs. 10.738 milllon which comprise basic salary, medical allowance and other benafits
as par the Company's policy.

38. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total employess at year end excluding the contractual employees were 62 (30 June 2017: 88) and the
average number of employees during the year was 70 (30 June 2017; 67).

37. GENERAL

37.1 Corresponding flgures
The fourth schadule to the Companies Act 2017 has introduced cartain presentation and classification
requirements for the elements of financial statements. Accordingly, the comesponding figures have been

rearranged and reclassified, wharever considerad necessary, to comply with the requirements of Companias
Act, 2017.

37.2 Date of authorisation for lssua

Thess financial statements have been authorisad for issue on by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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1. Incorporation Number 71068

2. Name of the Company "NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED"
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-JUN-2018
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6. PATTERN OF SHARHOLDING FORM "34" SHAREHOLDER'S STATISTICS

NO. OF SHARESHOLDINGS
| NO OF SHAREHOLDERS FROM | TO Total Shares |

126 1 100 728
214 101 500 105,077
62 501 1,000 58,229
144 1,001 5,000 379,552
45 5,001 10,000 363,875
19 10,001 15,000 258,241
6 15,001 20,000 115,000
4 20,001 25,000 91,125
8 25,001 30,000 230,250
3 35,000 40,000 109,000
2 40,001 45,000 87,000
g 50,000 55,000 464,500
3 55,001 60,000 176,500
3 60,001 65,000 184,923
2 80,001 85,000 165,000
1 85,001 80,000 86,000
5 95,000 100,000 452,500
1 100,001 105,000 101,250
1 110,001 115,000 111,000
1 120,000 125,000 120,000
1 125,001 120,000 126,000
2 150,000 155,000 300,000
1 175,000 180,000 175,000
1 185,001 190,000 187,000
1 190,001 195,000 192,000
1 200,000 205,000 200,000
2 240,000 245,000 485,000
1 275,000 280,000 275,000
1 295,001 300,000 295,500
1 335,001 340,000 335,500
1 350,000 355,000 350,000
1 375,001 380,000 375,250
1 415,001 420,000 419,500
1 435,001 440,000 436,000
1 500,000 505,000 500,000
1 595,000 600,000 595,000
1 1,100,001 1,105,000 1,100,250
1 1,295,000 1,300,000 1,295,000
1 1,830,001 1,835,000 1,834,500
1 2,895,000 2,500,000 2,895,000
1 3,375,000 3,380,000 3,375,000
1 4,325,000 4,330,000 4,325,000
1 4,360,001 4,365,000 4,360,500
1 4,500,000 4,505,000 4,500,000
1 12,365,001 12,370,000 12,368,250
686 45,000,000
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Categories Detalls of Shareholding as at June 30, 2018

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children [to be confirm by Company)

NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MR, MUHAMMAD ZULOARNAIN MAHMOOD KHAN Individualy 2,250 0.01
MRS. HANNA KHAN Incividualy 562 0.00
MR, MUHAMMAD ZUBAIR ELLAHI Tndadusis 562 0.00
MR. HASAN SHAHNAWAZ Indibvidualy 2,250 0.01
MR, UMER HABIB Incividuals 562 0.00
MUHAMMAD NAJAM ALl Indhvidusls 12,368,250 2749
MRS, HANNA KHAN Indihadushy 1,100,250 245
MR. TARIQ WASEEM GHAZI Individualy 24,1325 0.05
Sub-Total 13,498,811 30.00
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MCBE BANK LUIMITED - TREASURY Fnandal Instirtions 4,360,500 9.69
Sub-Total 4,360,500 9.69
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND Mutaal Fosd 375,250 0.83
CDC - TRUSTEE MATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST Mutual Fond 585,000 132
Sub-Total 970,250 216
Others
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LTD Jolnyt Stock Companies 3,375,000 7.50
MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED Jodnt Stock Companies 1 0.00
Habib Bank AG Zurich Zurich Switzerand Finarial Instutions 37,000 0.08
MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED Joint Pock Companies 20,000 0.04
ABBAS CORPORATION [PVT) LIMITED Joint Stock Companies 500,000 1.11
MNCC - PRE SETTLEMEMNT DELIVERY ACCOUNT Joint Sock Companies 15,000 0.03
SHADAB INNOVATIONS (PRIVATE] LIMITED Joint Stock Companles 29,000 0.06
ABA ALl HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED Joint Stock Companles 5625 0.01
PEARL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF Joint Stock Companies 30,000 0.07
ASDA SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. Jodnt Stock Compantes 60,000 0.13
STANDARD CAPITAL SECURITIES {PVT) LIMITED - MF Joinit Stock Companies 18,000 0.04
BACKERS & PARTMNERS (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF Jodnt Stock Companes 37,000 0.08
MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF Joint Stock Companies 11,500 0.03
Sub-Total 4,138,126 9.20
Individual

HOLDING PRECENT

Individuals 22,032,313 48.95

Grand Total 45,000,000 100
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PROXY FORM
I'We being a member of Next Capital Limited
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss, of Next Capital Ltd
failing whom Mr/Mrs./Miss, of as my/ our proxy to

attend and act for me/ us, and on my/ our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, October 25, 2017 at 09:00 a.m. at The Royal Rodale Auditorium, TC-V, 34% Street, Khayaban-e-Sehar,
Phase-V, Ext., D.H.A., Karachi, and any adjoumment thereof.

Dated this day of 2018
Specimen Signature of
Prowxy
Rewvenue Felio Mo.
Stamp
Rs.Sl= Participant 1.D. No.
Sub Account No.
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Altemate Proxy
Folio No. Folio No.
Participant 1.D. No. Participant 1.0, No.
Sub Account No. Sub Account No.
Note:

1. If a member is unable to attend the Meeting, he / she may appoint another member as his / her proxy and
send this form to Next Capital Limited, 8th Floor, Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/8, Block-ll, Clifton, Karachi, to
reach not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

2, Aftested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy holder shall be fumished with
the proxy form.

3. The proxy holder shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

4. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attomey with specimen signature
shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company
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r———-—--——————-

Affix
postage
slamp

The Company Secretary
Mext Capital Limited

8" Floor Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/6
Block IIl, Clifton, Karachi

_-_---__-----_J
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Head Office:

8th Floor Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/6

Block lll, Clifton, Karachi.
Pakistan.

UAN: 92-21-111-639-825
Fax: 92-21-35292621

Lahore Branch Office:

House # 43-A/S, Zafar Ali Road,
Aziz Avenue Gulberg-5, Lahore

Ph: 92-42-35791281-88,
Fax: 92-42-35791289

DHA Lahore Branch Office:

Plaza # 67 - CCA, Block - DD
Phase - IV, DHA,
Lahore Cantt.

Ph: 92-42-35694113

HLay
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